
 
 

West Northamptonshire Joint 
StrategicPlanningCommittee 

 
Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held at the The Council 
Chamber, St. Giles Square, Northampton, NN1 1DE. on Tuesday, 13 
March 2012 at 6:00 pm. 

D. Kennedy 
Chief Executive 

Contact: Frazer McGown, Democratic Services Manager 
fmcgown@northampton.gov.uk or tel;01604 837101  

 
 Agenda 

     
 1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
   

 2. MINUTES    

  Minutes of the meeting held on 3rd October 2011 (attached 
herewith)  

   

 3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    

  • Personal 

• Prejudicial  
   

 4. MATTERS OF URGENCY    

  To consider any issues that the Chairman is of the opinion are 
Matters of Urgency.  

   

 5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (IF ANY)    
   

 6. JOINT CORE STRATEGY: UPDATE AND TIMETABLE    

  (Report herewith)  
   

 7. AUDIT OF THE WEST NORTHAMPTONSHIRE JOINT 
PLANNING UNIT   

 

  (Report herewith)  
   

 8. THE CHAIRMAN TO MOVE:    



  “THAT THE PUBLIC BE EXCLUDED FROM THE REMAINDER 
OF THE MEETING ON THE GROUNDS THAT THERE IS 
LIKELY TO BE DISCLOSURE TO THEM OF SUCH 
CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED BY 
SECTION 100(1) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS 
ARE LISTED AGAINST SUCH ITEM OR ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
BY REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE PARAGRAPH OF 
SCHEDULE 12A TO SUCH ACT.”  

   



1 
West Northamptonshire Joint Strategic Planning Committee Minutes - Monday, 3 October 2011 

WEST NORTHAMPTONSHIRE JOINT STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 

Monday, 3 October 2011 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Mary Clarke (Chair); Councillor Tim Hadland (Deputy Chair); 

Councillors Rebecca Breese, Stephen Clarke, Michael Hill, Chris Millar and 
Chris Over.  
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Apologies were received from Councillors Wendy Amos, Jim Bass, Kay Driver, Penny 
Flavell, Andre Gonzalez de Savage, David Palethorpe and Ben Smith.  
 

2. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2011 were agreed and signed as a true record 
by the Chair.   
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none.  
 

4. MATTERS OF URGENCY 

The Chair was of the opinion that the following matter be discussed as a Matter of Urgency 
due to the undue delay if consideration of it were deferred: 
 
Joint Committee Membership 
 
The Chair asked each of partner Councils to confirm its membership of the Joint Committee 
including substitutes and the Business Sub Group. 
 
RESOLVED:   1.  That the membership of the West Northamptonshire Joint  
                             Strategic Planning Committee be confirmed as being: 
 
                              Daventry District Council- Councillors Amos, Driver and Millar 

(substitutes- Councillors Eddon, Over and Poole) 
 
                              Northampton Borough Council- Councillors Flavell, Hadland, Palethorpe 

and Yates (substitutes- Councillors Golby, Hallam, Hill and Nunn) 
 
                              South Northamptonshire Council- Councillors Breese, M Clarke and S. 

Clarke (substitutes Councillors Digby and Townsend) 
 
                              Northamptonshire County Council- Councillors de Savage and Smith (no 

substitutes) 
 

2. That the Chair arrange for a further substitute member from South 
Northamptonshire Council and to write to the County Council inviting them 
to appoint two substitute members. 

 
3. That the membership of the Business Sub Group be confirmed as being: 

 
Daventry District Council- Councillors Driver and Millar 
 
Northampton Borough Council- Councillors Hadland and Palethorpe 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page1



2 
West Northamptonshire Joint Strategic Planning Committee Minutes - Monday, 3 October 2011 

South Northamptonshire District Council- Councillors Breese and 
S.Clarke 
 
Northamptonshire County Council- Councillors de Savage and Smith     

 

5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (IF ANY) 

There was none.  
 

6. DRAFT JPU BUDGET 2012/13 

The Head of the JPU submitted a report that set out a proposed budget for the JPU for 
2012/13, elaborated thereon and referred to the Addendum that had been circulated and 
that set out a further saving of £4,000 in Option 1, an additional carry forward of £40,000 
into the 2012/13 budget and the consequential amendments to the recommendations in the 
report.   . 
 
RESOLVED:  1.  That Option 2 as set out in the report to reduce the JPU budget by 10% 

and to reduce the base budget to £691,480 be approved for ratification by 
partner Councils. 

 
                       2.   That approval be given in principle to the carry forward of £452,000 from 

2011/12 to 2012/13 subject to further review at the end of the financial year 
as set out in the Addendum.   

                           
                                    The meeting concluded at 18.10 hours 
 
    
 

 

Page2



 

Item No: 6 

Date:  13 March 2012 

 

WEST NORTHAMPTONSHIRE  

JOINT STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
Joint Core Strategy: Update and  

Timetable 
 

 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF THE JOINT PLANNING UNIT 

1. Purpose 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is for the Joint Strategic Planning Committee:  

 
a) To receive an update on the national context including the Localism Act, 

transitional arrangements and the draft National Planning Policy 
Framework; and 
 

b) To agree the next stages and timetable of the Joint Core Strategy, as set 
out in Appendix 1 of this report. 

 
2. Update on the National Context  

 
Localism Act 

2.1 The Localism Bill received Royal Assent on 15 November 2012.  It is 
expected that the majority of the measures relevant to the preparation of the 
Joint Core Strategy set out in the Act, including revocation of the Regional 
Spatial Strategy, will take effect by April 2012 but no further information is 
currently available. 
 
Local Planning Regulations Consultation 

2.2 In July 2011 the Government published a consultation on the Local Planning 
Regulations.  The consultation closed on 7 October 2011.  The consultation 
sought views on the Government’s proposed new regulations governing the 
process by which local councils prepare their development plan and 
associated documents.  The Government reviewed these regulations: 
 

(i) In response to reforms set out in the Localism Bill; 

(ii) To consolidate changes made to the 2004 regulations into a single 

document; and 

Agenda Item 6

Page3



 

(iii) To ensure the regulations are as effective and simple as possible. 

2.3 It is expected that the final Local Plan Regulations, accompanied by 
transitional arrangements, will be published by April 2012. 
 
Draft National Planning Policy Framework 
 

2.4 In July 2011 the Government published the draft National Planning Policy 
Framework (NPPF) for consultation.  The consultation closed on 17 October 
2011.  On 19 October 2011 Greg Clark (The Minister of State for 
Decentralisation and Cities) issued a Written Ministerial Statement regarding 
Planning Reform. In the Statement the Minister confirmed that the 
Government will now consider the comments it has received to the draft 
NPPF.  The Government has asked the Communities and Local Government 
Select Committee to consider and make suggestions on the draft.  The 
Minister also confirmed that the Government will also take fully into account 
the comments in the House of Commons debate on 20 October and in the 
House of Lords on 27 October as well as all the comments made in the 
debates during the proceedings on the Localism Bill.  Once all the 
suggestions made have been considered the Government will then publish 
the revised text.  The Government are still committed to the publication of the 
final version of the NPPF by 31 March 2012 but they intend to do so well 
ahead of that time.   
 
Revocation of the East Midlands Regional Plan 
 

2.5 As part of its intention to revoke the existing regional spatial strategies, 
outside London, the Government decided to carry out assessments of the 
likely significant environmental effects of the revocation of the eight existing 
regional strategies, on a voluntary basis.  This included an assessment of the 
East Midlands Regional Plan.  The assessments have been carried out in line 
with the procedure set out in the Strategic Environmental Assessment 
Directive.  In October 2011 the Government published the assessments for 
consultation.  The consultation closed on 20 January 2012. 
 
Stevenage Borough Council High Court Judgement 
  

2.6 On 1 December 2011 a High Court Judgement was delivered in the case of 
The Queen on the application of Stevenage Borough Council v SSCLG and 
North Hertfordshire District Council EWHC 3136.  This Judgement refers to 
the High Court Judgement published on 27 May 2011 given in The Queen (on 
the application of Cala Homes (South) Limited v SSCLG [2010] EWHC 2866 
where it is stated in the penultimate sentence of paragraph 24: 

 
“It would be unlawful for a local planning authority preparing, or a 
Planning Inspector examining, development plan documents to have 
regard to the proposal to abolish regional strategies.  For so long as 
the regional strategies continue to exist, any development plan 

Page4



 

documents must be in general conformity with the relevant regional 
strategy.” 

2.7 In his judgement on the Stevenage Borough Council vs SSCLG and North 
Hertfordshire District Council case Justice Ouseley stated in relation to 
paragraph 24 of the Cala Homes High Court Judgement on 27 May 2011: 

“I reject that submission.  The statutory obligation is quite clear.  The 
DPD must be in general conformity with the Regional Strategy at the 
stage when it is submitted for examination; S20(2)(b) requires the 
local authority to submit it when it is ready and when it thinks that the 
plan generally conforms to the Regional Strategy.  There is no earlier 
obligation in relation to general conformity.  S20(5) requires the DPD 
to be submitted for examination for such conformity, and for 
soundness.  S24 does not bite at any earlier stage in the preparation 
of the DPD.” 

2.8 The effect of this Judgment is that the Partner planning authorities may 
proceed in the preparation of Development Plan Documents (in this case the 
Joint Core Strategy) that are not in general conformity with the RSS, pending 
the RSS’ revocation but only up to the point of submission and provided that it 
keeps under review and adjusts appropriately its plan making process as the 
wider statutory and policy context becomes clearer. 

Officers’ Conclusions 

2.9 In the light of the Localism Act now being in place that provides the necessary 
provisions to secure the revocation of the RSS, and the High Court 
Judgement The Queen on the application of Stevenage Borough Council v 
SSCLG and North Hertfordshire District Council EWHC 3136, officers 
consider that, on balance, the Partnership can and should progress the 
preparation of the Joint Core Strategy.  There are, of course, risks associated 
with this approach: the possibility that the RSS is not revoked or that 
revocation is delayed due to legal challenges associated, for example, with 
the related environment assessments. However, although the timescale for 
RSS revocation is uncertain the risk of retention is now small. Equally, it 
appears likely that the Government will put in place transitional arrangements 
to allow reliance to be placed in plan making steps taken under the existing 
Regulations.  In the light of this it is considered that the benefits to the 
Partnership of being ready to submit the Joint Core Strategy at the earliest 
possible stage, post-revocation, outweigh the risks. This is especially in the 
light of the cost implications of progressing the Joint Core Strategy to 
Submission being relatively small and the majority of costs would be incurred 
in any event as they involve progressing changes to the Pre-Submission Draft 
which would be required irrespective of the conformity issue.  Importantly, the 
proposed timescales are such stock can be taken of progress on the 
revocation of the RSS, new policy and new regulations, before any further 
additional significant expense is incurred. 

Page5



 

2.10 The February 2010 edition of the West Northamptonshire Local Development 
Scheme (LDS) will be updated to reflect changed circumstances and priorities 
including the Localism Act.  It is necessary to update the LDS and publish it 
ahead of the submission of the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy to 
the Secretary of State for its public examination, as this is a statutory 
requirement.  As it is now anticipated that the Joint Core Strategy will be 
submitted later in 2012 it is important that an up to date LDS is prepared.  The 
updated LDS will be presented to the Joint Strategic Planning Committee on 
16 July 2012 for resolution to bring the Scheme into effect. 

 
3. Next Stages of the Joint Core Strategy Preparation Process and the 

Timetable 
 

3.1 A local authority, if faced with issues of soundness raised during 
representations, is able to undertake mitigating action.  This can include 
proposing changes to the development plan document. 

 
3.2 To make changes the Joint Planning Unit would need to: 
 

• Prepare changes to the Pre-Submission Joint Core Strategy; 

• Review the implications of the changes for the Sustainability Appraisal and 
the Habitats Regulations Assessment; and 

• Publish the changes to allow representations to be made. 
 
3.3 At the close of the statutory 6 weeks period for representations, the Joint 

Planning Unit would then submit the original development plan document (i.e. 
the Pre-Submission Joint Core Strategy), the representations to the Pre-
Submission Joint Core Strategy, the changes to the Pre-Submission Joint 
Core Strategy and the representations to the changes to the Secretary of 
State. 

 
3.4 The advantage of preparing changes is that it enables representations that 

were made at the Pre-Submission stage to be addressed ahead of the 
Examination helping to ensure that no fundamental issues of soundness arise 
at the examination stage.    

 
3.5 The timetable for the changes stage and the Submission of the Joint Core 

Strategy is set out in Appendix 1.  The timetable includes brief notes about 
each stage of the process. 
 

4. Recommendations 

4.1 It is recommended that the Joint Strategic Planning Committee: 
 
a) Notes the update on the national context including the Localism Act, 

transitional arrangements and the draft National Planning Policy 
Framework; and 
 

Page6



 

b) Agrees that changes to the Pre-Submission Joint Core Strategy are now 
formally prepared and presented to the Joint Strategic Planning 
Committee on 16 July 2012 for consideration in accordance with the Joint 
Core Strategy timetable set out at Appendix 1 of this report. 
 
 

 
David Atkinson 
Head of the West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit 
Telephone: 01604 838412 
 
Claire Berry  
Development Plans Team Leader 
West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit 
Telephone: 01604 838030 
 
 

Page7



 

Appendix 1 – West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Timetable for changes and Submission 
 

Stage Timing Notes 

1) Prepare changes to the Pre-
Submission version of the Joint Core 
Strategy. 

Completed 
April 2012 

This period of work includes the JPU: 
- Considering the representations in detail particularly in 
the light of the evidence base and national policy 

- Drafting possible changes 
- Informally consult key organisations on possible 
changes including the Partner Councils 

 
 
 

2) Review the Sustainability Appraisal 
and Habitats Regulations 
Assessment. 

May - June 
2012 

This period of work includes: 
- Reviewing and updating the Sustainability Appraisal 
and the Habitats Regulations Assessment 

- Reviewing the final NPPF and making any 
consequent changes  

- Final legal check 
 

3) Joint Strategic Planning Committee 
considers the changes for publication 
to allow representations to be made. 
 

July 2012  

4) Publish the changes to allow 
representations to be made. 
 
 

July – 
August 2012 

Statutory 6 weeks representations period with an 
additional 2 weeks to account for the Summer holidays. 

5) Process and Summarise the 
Representations Received 
 

September  - 
October 
2012 

 

6) Joint Strategic Planning Committee 
considers the Submission of: 

November 
2012 

 

P
age8



 

• The Pre-Submission version of the 
Joint Core Strategy; 

• The Representations to the Pre-
Submission version; 

• The changes; and 
• The Representations to the 

changes. 
 

7) Regulation 30 – Submission of: 

• The Pre-Submission version of the 
Joint Core Strategy; 

• The Representations to the Pre-
Submission version; 

• The changes; and 

• The Representations to the 
changes. 

December 
2012 

 

 

P
age9



Item No: 7 

Date:  13th March 2012 

 

WEST NORTHAMPTONSHIRE  

JOINT LOCAL DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK 

JOINT STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 
Audit of West Northamptonshire Joint 

Planning Unit: 2011 
 

 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF THE JOINT PLANNING UNIT 

1. Purpose 
 
1.1 To inform the Joint Strategic Planning Committee regarding the work 

undertaken in both the Joint Planning Unit (JPU) and at South 
Northamptonshire Council, to ensure that robust governance and financial 
controls and processes are place, relating to the work and operation of the JPU. 
 

2. Context 
 
2.1 The Auditors of the JPU found that all necessary governance and budgetary 

safeguards are in place regarding all areas of JPU operation. They found a 
sound system of budgetary control that is both fit for purpose and being 
consistently applied. Therefore, the Audit concludes that, given the current level 
of maturity of the financial arrangements in place, in the opinion of the Auditors 
“Full Assurance” can be provided.  

 
2.2 In the light of this, the Committee is asked to note this outcome of the 2011 

Audit of the JPU. They are specifically asked to note that sound systems of 
control are in place to enable the sound management of the governance and 
finances of the Unit. 
  

3. Recommendation 
 
3.1 That the Committee note that there are sound systems of control in place to 

enable the sound management of the JPU. 
 
 
David Atkinson 
Head of the West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit 
Telephone: 01604  838412 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page10


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Joint Core Strategy: Update and Timetable
	7 Audit of the West Northamptonshire Joint Planning Unit

